
City Plan Commission

City of Appleton

Meeting Agenda - Final

100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

Any questions about items on this meeting are to be directed to 

the Community and Economic Development Department, 

920-832-6468.

Council Chambers, 6th Floor3:30 PMWednesday, April 13, 2022

1. Call meeting to order

2. Roll call of membership

3. Approval of minutes from previous meeting

22-0445 City Plan Minutes from 3-23-22

City Plan Minutes 3-23-22.pdfAttachments:

4. Public Hearings/Appearances

22-0446 Special Use Permit #5-22 for a restaurant with alcohol sales and service 

located at 1103 West College Avenue (Tax Id #31-3-1064-00), as shown 

on the attached maps and per attached plan of operation, to run with the 

land subject to the conditions in the attached staff report and approve 

attached Resolution (Associated with Action Item #22-0447)

ClassIIPublicHearingNoticeNewspaper_1103WCollegeAve_SUP#5-22.pdf

PublicHearingNoticeNeighborhood_1103WCollegeAve_SUP#5-22.pdf

Attachments:

5. Action Items

22-0447 Request to approve Special Use Permit #5-22 for a restaurant with alcohol 

sales and service located at 1103 West College Avenue (Tax Id 

#31-3-1064-00), as shown on the attached maps and per attached plan of 

operation, to run with the land subject to the conditions in the attached staff 

report and approve attached Resolution (2/3 vote of Common Council 

required for approval)

StaffReport_1103WCollegeAve_SUP_For04-13-22.pdfAttachments:

6. Information Items

Page 1 City of Appleton Printed on 4/8/2022

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20995
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=003ff6aa-7dd5-48af-82ec-3ee46d3ee472.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20996
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a7f4e47b-93a7-49f4-89f5-fde9ffe62245.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7c60aca3-4f98-46db-9798-751b1b8d1b41.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20997
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4435dfdb-47d4-4669-b9ca-3828f2930293.pdf


April 13, 2022City Plan Commission Meeting Agenda - Final

7. Adjournment

Notice is hereby given that a quorum of the Common Council may be present during this 

meeting, although no Council action will be taken.

Reasonable Accommodations for Persons with Disabilities will be made upon Request 

and if Feasible.

Page 2 City of Appleton Printed on 4/8/2022



100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

City of Appleton

Meeting Minutes - Final

City Plan Commission

Any questions about items on this meeting are to be directed 

to the Community and Economic Development Department, 

920-832-6468.

3:30 PM Council Chambers, 6th FloorWednesday, March 23, 2022

Call meeting to order1.

Meeting called to order by Chair Mayor Woodford at 3:32 p.m.

Roll call of membership2.

Commissioner Robins appeared virtually and participated via Teams.

Robins, Mayor Woodford, Fenton, Buetow, Dane and UitenbroekPresent: 6 - 

PalmExcused: 1 - 

Others present:

Alderperson Joe Martin, District #4

Alderperson Michael Smith, District #10

Aaron Phillipson, All Tied Up Floral Cafe

W. Schefe, 1819 W. Spring Street

Reginald Desamour, Area 509 - 1025 N. Badger Avenue

Stacie Molina, Sangria's - 215 S. Memorial Drive

Approval of minutes from previous meeting3.

22-0341 City Plan Minutes from 3-9-22

City Plan Minutes 3-9-22.pdfAttachments:

Fenton moved, seconded by Uitenbroek, that the Minutes be approved. Roll 

Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Robins, Mayor Woodford, Fenton, Buetow, Dane and Uitenbroek6 - 

Excused: Palm1 - 

Public Hearings/Appearances4.

Page 1City of Appleton



March 23, 2022City Plan Commission Meeting Minutes - Final

22-0342 Special Use Permit #2-22 for a restaurant with alcohol sales and service 

located at 127 South Memorial Drive (Tax Id #31-3-0972-00), as shown 

on the attached maps and per attached plan of operation, to run with the 

land subject to the conditions in the attached staff report and approve 

attached Resolution (Associated with Action Item #22-0343)

ClassIIPublicHearingNoticeNewspaper_127SMemorialDr_SUP#2-22.p

df

PublicHearingNoticeNeighborhood_127SMemorialDr_SUP#2-22.pdf

Attachments:

This public hearing was held, and no one spoke on the item.

22-0344 Special Use Permit #3-22 for a restaurant with alcohol sales and service 

located at 324 East College Avenue (Tax Id #31-2-0343-00), as shown 

on the attached maps and per attached plan of operation, to run with the 

land subject to the conditions in the attached staff report and approve 

attached Resolution (Associated with Action Item #22-0345)

ClassIIPublicHearingNoticeNewspaper_324ECollegeAve_SUP#3-22.pd

f

PublicHearingNoticeNeighborhood_324ECollegeAve_SUP#3-22.pdf

Attachments:

This public hearing was held, and no one spoke on the item.

22-0346 Special Use Permit #4-22 for a restaurant with alcohol sales and service, 

and associated outdoor seating area, located at 1025 North Badger 

Avenue (Tax Id #31-5-2090-00), as shown on the attached maps and per 

attached plan of operation, to run with the land subject to the conditions in 

the attached staff report and approve attached Resolution (Associated 

with Action Item #22-0347)

ClassIIPublicHearingNoticeNewspaper_1025NBadgerAve_SUP#4-22.p

df

PublicHearingNoticeNeighborhood_1025NBadgerAve_SUP#4-22.pdf

Attachments:

This public hearing was held, and no one spoke on the item.

22-0348 Zoning Ordinance Text and Map Amendments to Article X Floodplain 

Zoning of Chapter 23 of the Municipal Code relating to Section 23-205(b)

(2) General provisions; Official maps and revisions; Official maps based 

on other studies (Associated with Action Item #22-0349)

NoticeofInformalPublicHearing_AmendFloodplainOrd_2022.pdfAttachments:

This public hearing was held, and no one spoke on the item.

Action Items5.

Page 2City of Appleton



March 23, 2022City Plan Commission Meeting Minutes - Final

22-0343 Request to approve Special Use Permit #2-22 for a restaurant with 

alcohol sales and service located at 127 South Memorial Drive (Tax Id 

#31-3-0972-00), as shown on the attached maps and per attached plan 

of operation, to run with the land subject to the conditions in the attached 

staff report and approve attached Resolution (2/3 vote of Common 

Council required for approval)

StaffReport_127SMemorialDr_SUP_For3-23-22.pdf

EmailofSupportforSUP_GregDeCleene_3-22-22.pdf

Attachments:

Buetow moved, seconded by Fenton, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Robins, Mayor Woodford, Fenton, Buetow, Dane and Uitenbroek6 - 

Excused: Palm1 - 

22-0345 Request to approve Special Use Permit #3-22 for a restaurant with 

alcohol sales and service located at 324 East College Avenue (Tax Id 

#31-2-0343-00), as shown on the attached maps and per attached plan 

of operation, to run with the land subject to the conditions in the attached 

staff report and approve attached Resolution (2/3 vote of Common 

Council required for approval)

StaffReport_324ECollegeAve_SUP_For03-23-22.pdfAttachments:

Fenton moved, seconded by Dane, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Robins, Mayor Woodford, Fenton, Buetow, Dane and Uitenbroek6 - 

Excused: Palm1 - 

22-0347 Request to approve Special Use Permit #4-22 for a restaurant with 

alcohol sales and service, and associated outdoor seating area, located 

at 1025 North Badger Avenue (Tax Id #31-5-2090-00), as shown on the 

attached maps and per attached plan of operation, to run with the land 

subject to the conditions in the attached staff report and approve attached 

Resolution (2/3 vote of Common Council required for approval)

StaffReport_1025NBadgerAve_SUP_For3-23-22.pdfAttachments:

Fenton moved, seconded by Buetow, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Robins, Mayor Woodford, Fenton, Buetow, Dane and Uitenbroek6 - 

Excused: Palm1 - 

Page 3City of Appleton



March 23, 2022City Plan Commission Meeting Minutes - Final

22-0349 Request to approve Zoning Ordinance Text and Map Amendments to 

Article X Floodplain Zoning of Chapter 23 of the Municipal Code relating 

to Section 23-205(b)(2) General provisions; Official maps and revisions; 

Official maps based on other studies, as identified in the attached staff 

report

StaffReport_AmendFloodplainOrd_AppleFields_CLOMR_For03-23-22.

pdf

Attachments:

Proceeds to Council on April 20, 2022.

Uitenbroek moved, seconded by Fenton, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Robins, Mayor Woodford, Fenton, Buetow, Dane and Uitenbroek6 - 

Excused: Palm1 - 

22-0351 Request to approve the Extraterritorial Final Plat for Auburn Estates 

located in the Town of Grand Chute as shown on the attached maps

StaffReport_AuburnEstates_FinalPlat_For03-23-22.pdfAttachments:

Fenton moved, seconded by Buetow, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Robins, Mayor Woodford, Fenton, Buetow and Uitenbroek5 - 

Nay: Dane1 - 

Excused: Palm1 - 

Information Items6.

Adjournment7.

Buetow moved, seconded by Fenton, that the meeting be adjourned at 3:45 

p.m. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Robins, Mayor Woodford, Fenton, Buetow, Dane and Uitenbroek6 - 

Excused: Palm1 - 

Page 4City of Appleton



              CEDD (15010) 

     Reprints - 2 

 

 
CITY OF APPLETON  

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 

PROPOSED SPECIAL USE PERMIT 

 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN of a Public Hearing to be held before the City Plan Commission on 

Wednesday, April 13, 2022, at 3:30 P.M., in Council Chambers, 6th Floor, City Hall, 100 North Appleton 

Street, or as soon thereafter as can be heard, for the purpose of considering a Special Use Permit. 

 

Pursuant to Sections 23-66 and 23-113 of the Appleton Municipal Code, to consider a 

request by Russell Leary, applicant, for property located at 1103 West College Avenue (Tax 

Id #31-3-1064-00) to obtain a Special Use Permit for a restaurant with alcohol sales and 

consumption (Mill City Public House).  In the C-2 General Commercial District, a Special 

Use Permit is required for a restaurant with alcohol sales and consumption. 

 

All persons interested are invited to attend this meeting and will be given an opportunity to be heard.  

Feedback can also be shared with Plan Commission members via written letter, email, or phone call.  Any 

questions regarding this matter should be directed to Don Harp, Principal Planner, in the Community and 

Economic Development Department at (920) 832-6466 or by email at don.harp@appleton.org. 

 

 

CITY PLAN COMMISSION   COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT  

APPLETON, WISCONSIN   CITY HALL - 100 NORTH APPLETON STREET 

APPLETON, WISCONSIN 54911-4799 

(920) 832-6468 

 

 

Reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities will be made upon request and if feasible. 

 

 

RUN:   March 29, 2022 

 April 5, 2022 

   

mailto:don.harp@appleton.org


 NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING  

 

OF THE 

 

APPLETON CITY PLAN COMMISSION 

 

 

Dear property owner(s): 

 

The City of Appleton Plan Commission will conduct a Public Hearing on Wednesday, April 13, 2022, at 

3:30 P.M., or as soon thereafter as can be heard, in Common Council Chambers, 6th Floor, City Hall, 100 

North Appleton Street, for the purpose of considering the following proposed Special Use Permit: 

 

 

• Pursuant to Sections 23-66 and 23-113 of the Appleton Municipal Code, to consider a 

request by Russell Leary, applicant, for property located at 1103 West College Avenue 

(Tax Id #31-3-1064-00) to obtain a Special Use Permit for a restaurant with alcohol sales 

and consumption (Mill City Public House).  In the C-2 General Commercial District, a 

Special Use Permit is required for a restaurant with alcohol sales and consumption. 

 

• ALDERMANIC DISTRICT:  10 – Alderperson Michael Smith 

 

 

You are being notified as a policy of the City of Appleton Community and Economic Development 

Department.  All persons interested are invited to attend this meeting and will be given an opportunity to 

be heard.  Feedback can also be shared with Plan Commission members via written letter, email, or phone 

call. The Plan Commission makes a recommendation to the Common Council who makes the final 

decision on the matter. 

 

Any questions regarding this matter should be directed to Don Harp, Principal Planner, in the Community 

and Economic Development Department at 920-832-6466 or by email at don.harp@appleton.org. 

 

 

CITY PLAN COMMISSION    COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT  

       CITY HALL - 100 NORTH APPLETON STREET 

 APPLETON, WISCONSIN 54911-4799 

 920-832-6468 

 

 
Reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities will be made upon request and if feasible. 

mailto:don.harp@appleton.org


3-1121-1

3-1128-1

5-1670

3-1
10

6
3-1

11
4

3-1
07

9

3-1
08

0

5-1728
3-1

10
9

3-1
10

8

3-1
11

0

3-1
11

5

3-1
11

6

3-1
11

7

3-1
11

8

3-1
11

9

3-1
06

4
3-1

07
2

3-1
07

1

3-1
11

2

3-1
11

1

3-1
07

0

3-1
06

9

3-1
06

8

3-1
06

7

3-1
06

6
3-1

05
9

3-1
06

0

3-1
06

1

3-1
06

2

3-1
06

3

3-1
09

4

3-1
09

3
3-1

10
2

3-1
08

7

3-1
08

6

5-1729-1
5-1669

5-1677

5-1674

5-1673

5-1
683

5-1
675

5-1676

3-1137

3-1056

3-10573-1050

3-1
12

3

3-1
12

2

3-1
12

1
3-1

13
0

3-1
13

1

3-1
13

2

3-1
12

7
3-1

12
6

3-1
12

5
3-1

12
4

3-1
12

8

3-1
13

3 3-1
13

4

3-1
13

5

3-1
13

6

3-1
05

4

3-1
05

3

3-1
05

2

3-1
04

3

3-1
04

4

3-1
04

5

3-1
04

6-1

3-1
04

7
3-1

04
8

3-1
04

9

3-1
05

5
3-1

04
6

3-1121-2

3-1
081

3-1
058

3-1
065

3-1103

3-1104 3-1129

3-1
05

1

3-1
12

0

3-1105
3-1113

3-1
10

7
5-1671-1

3-1
12

0-1

1007.51121.5

140.5

1023 1017 1011

1117

1013 1007 1003

1000

1010

1033

12
7

12
012
0

11
2

21
0

21
8

21
2

22
0

1112.5 1102.5

21
9

1207-09 1203 1135 1127 1121 1115 1109 1103
1135.5

110211081114112411281134 1118
1128.5 1118.5 1032.5 1026.5

1032

1003.5

12
7.5

10031007101310171023

136.5136
130

140

200

13
9

13
5

20
1

21
7

21
3

1129.5 1125.5

1008

11
9

1012101810221026

1023.5
1027-291031

1035.5
1035

12021208

12031209 1119112511291135 110311091115

21
9

20
9

ALLEY

W COLLEGE AV

W LAWRENCE ST

S S
UM

MI
T S

T

S S
PR

UC
E S

T

N BADGER AV

W WASHINGTON ST

MARSTON ALLEY

C-2

P-I

R-2

R-2

R-1B

R-2

R-1C

R-2

R-2

R-1B

R-1C

R-1C

R-1B

R-1C

R-1B

R-1B
R-1C

R-2

R-1B

R-2

R-2

R-1B
R-2

R-1B

R-1B
R-1B

R-1B

R-2

R-1C

W COLLEGE AV

W PACKARD ST

W LAWRENCE ST

W SPENCER ST

W EIGHTH ST

N BADGER AV

W LORAIN ST

S S
TA

TE
 S

T

S S
TO

RY
 ST

S M
AS

ON
 ST

N 
ST

AT
E S

T

N 
ST

OR
Y S

T

N 
MA

SO
N 

ST

S D
OU

GL
AS

 ST

S BADGER AV

W FOURTH ST S M
EM

OR
IA

L D
R

S L
OC

US
T S

T

N 
BE

NN
ET

T S
T

N 
DO

UG
LA

S 
ST

S O
UT

AG
AM

IE 
ST

S P
IE

RC
E A

V

N 
RI

CH
MO

ND
 ST

N 
LO

CU
ST

 ST

LORAIN CT

W HARRIS ST

S V
IC

TO
RI

A S
T ALLEY

N 
FA

IR
 ST

ALLEY

Special Use Permit
Restaurant with Alcohol sales and service

1103 West College Avenue
Zoning Map

Subject
Area

City Plan Commission
4-13-2022

Subject Area

± 0 100 20050 Feet



3-1
06

4

3-1
06

3

12
0

1109 1103

ALLEY

S S
UM

MI
T S

T

W COLLEGE AV Special Use Permit
Restaurant with Alcohol sales and service

1103 West College Avenue
Aerial Map

City Plan Commission
4-13-2022

Subject Area

± 0 20 4010 Feet



H
ood

Food Prep Tables

Glass Storage 
w/drain

Ice Bin
w/drain

2 Basin Sink
supply/drain

Hand Wash
supply/drain

dishwasher

4 compartment sink

Floor Drain

Mop Sink

Fl
oo

r D
ra

in
 (t

ra
ug

h)

W
alk in cooler and freezer

81

Combi Oven

6 Burner Range

Deep Fryer

Flat Top Griddle

Deep Fryer

Deep Fryer

41

36

16

16

16

60

Hand
Sink

Food Prep 
Sink

Hand
Sink

40

17

Reach In Freezer

Office

Rinse

Dump

Hand Wash

Garbage

Ice

Liquer

Drain Board
w/storage 

Glass
Washer

FR2

Dump

Rinse

Ice

Liquer

Hand Wash

Garbage

Cabinet

Beer
Cooler

Beer Lines

Beer 
Cooler

Cabinet

Server station
reg base cabinet

Open Shelves

cooler

cabinet

Sink
Hand

24

36

36

12

re
g 

ba
se

 c
ab

in
et

S
er

ve
r s

ta
tio

n

O
pe

n 
S

he
lv

es

107

521
8

1427
8

224
2271

2

2171
4

Water station

552

2251
2

951
2

216

2261
4

1151
2

75

7261
8

197

2661
2

2541
2

1001
2



 

 

 

 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION___________________________________________________  _ 

Owner:  Jordan Banda – 1800 West Rogers Avenue 

 

Applicant:  Russell Leary – 1800 West Rogers Avenue 

 

Address/Parcel #:  1103 West College Avenue (Tax Id #31-3-1064-00) 

 

Petitioner’s Request:  The applicant is requesting a Special Use Permit for a restaurant with alcohol sales 

and service.  

 

BACKGROUND______________________________________________________________  _ 

On December 2, 2021, the Inspections Division issued Building Permit #B21-1145 for remodeling the 

subject site into a restaurant with a bar area.  

 

The Appleton Elks Lodge #337 sold the subject site to Jordan Banda (owner) pursuant to Warranty Deed 

Document #2230993, executed on April 16, 2021. 

On May 19, 1998, Certificate of Occupancy and Compliance #98-41 was issued by the Inspections 

Division to allow the Appleton Elks Club to occupy the subject site for a place of entertainment.  

 

On August 2, 1995, the Common Council approved Special Use Permit (SUP) #8-95 to permanently run 

with the Appleton Elks Lodge #337 for a “private club with a bar” located at 1103 West College Avenue.  

Note: SUP 8-95 cannot be transferred to another person/entity.  

 

STAFF ANALYSIS____________________________________________________________  _ 

Project Summary:  Mill City Public House is restaurant with alcohol sales serving lunch and dinner 

meals, including a bar area.  In addition, take-out food orders will be offered. The business operations 

(dining, bar, kitchen/cooler/freezer, restroom and office areas) will utilize the ground floor of the 4,120 

square foot building.   The basement area is not included in this review.  

 

Operational Information:  The plan of operation is attached to the staff report. 

 

Outdoor Seating Area:  No outdoor alcohol sales and service is requested with this application. 

REPORT TO CITY PLAN COMMISSION 

Plan Commission Public Hearing Date:  April 13, 2022 

Common Council Meeting Date:  April 20, 2022 

Item:  Special Use Permit #5-22 for restaurant with alcohol sales and 

service located at 1103 West College Avenue 

 

Case Manager:  Don Harp, Principal Planner 

Community  

and Economic 

Development 



Special Use Permit #5-22 

April 13, 2022 

Page 2 

 

Zoning Development Standards (Restaurant):  The review of the zoning development/off-street 

parking standards of the C-2 General Commercial District for the restaurant use is under the purview of 

the Inspections Division pursuant to Building Permit #B21-1145.  Prior to the Certificate of Occupancy 

and Compliance being issued, the Inspections Division will ensure the remodeling project for the 

restaurant use complies with the Zoning Ordinance regulations.  

 

Zoning Ordinance Requirements (Alcohol Sales):  The subject property has a zoning designation of C-

2 General Commercial District.  Per Section 23-113(e) of the Municipal Code, a restaurant with alcohol 

sales requires a Special Use Permit in the C-2 District.  In order to permit alcohol sales and service in 

conjunction with the proposed restaurant, the Plan Commission makes a recommendation to the Common 

Council who will make the final decision on the Special Use Permit.  A two-thirds (2/3) vote of the 

Common Council is required for approval. 

 

Surrounding Zoning and Land Uses:  The surrounding area is under the jurisdiction of the City of 

Appleton (north, south, east, and west).  The uses are generally commercial and residential in nature. 

 

North:  C-2 General Commercial District.  The adjacent land uses to the north are currently a mix of uses, 

including personal storage, retail and personal/professional services.  

 

South:  R-1B Single-family and R-2 Two-family district. The adjacent land uses to the south are currently 

one/two family residential. 

 

East:  C-2 General Commercial District.  The adjacent land use to the east is professional office building.  

 

West:  C-2 General Commercial District.  The adjacent land use to the west is an unoccupied commercial 

building.  

 

Appleton Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030:  Community and Economic Development staff has reviewed 

this proposal and determined it is compatible with the commercial designation shown on the City’s 

Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 Future Land Use Map.  Listed below are related excerpts from the City’s 

Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030. 

 

Goal 1 – Community Growth 

Appleton will continue to provide opportunities for residential, commercial, and industrial growth, 

including appropriate redevelopment sites within the downtown and existing neighborhoods, and 

greenfield development sites at the City's edge. 

 

Goal 8 – Economic Development 

Appleton will pursue economic development that retains and attracts talented people, brings good jobs to 

the area, and supports the vitality of its industrial areas, downtown, and neighborhood business districts. 

 

OBJECTIVE 9.5 Economic Development: 

Encourage new development and redevelopment activities that create vital and attractive neighborhoods 

and business districts. 



Special Use Permit #5-22 

April 13, 2022 

Page 3 

 

OBJECTIVE 10.2 Land Use: 

Encourage redevelopment to meet the demand for a significant share of future growth, and to enhance the 

quality of existing neighborhoods. 

 

OBJECTIVE 10.5 Land Use: 

Support the continued redevelopment and revitalization of land uses adjacent to Appleton’s key 

transportation corridors and downtown. 

 

Zoning Ordinance Requirements and Substantial Evidence:  When reviewing an application for a 

Special Use Permit, the City must determine if the applicant’s proposal satisfies Municipal Code 

requirements and conditions.  Pursuant to Section 23-66(c)(5) of the Municipal Code, the Plan 

Commission and Common Council must provide substantial evidence supporting their decision to 

approve, approve with conditions, or deny the Special Use Permit.  Substantial evidence means “facts and 

information, other than merely personal preferences or speculation, directly pertaining to the requirements  

and conditions an applicant must meet to obtain a Special Use Permit and that reasonable persons would 

accept in support of a conclusion.”  Any requirements and conditions listed for approval must be 

reasonable, and to the extent practicable, measurable. 

 

Finding of Fact:  This request was reviewed in accordance with the standards for granting a Special Use 

Permit under Section 23-66(e)(1-8) of the Municipal Code:  (1. proper zoning district: C-2 zoning allows 

restaurants with alcohol as a special use permit; 2. zoning district regulations: prior to the Certificate of 

Occupancy and Compliance being issued, the Inspections Division will ensure the remodeling project for 

the restaurant use complies with the Zoning Ordinance regulations pursuant to Building Permit #B21-

1145; 3. special regulations: stipulations 1, 2, 3 and 4 (below) address the special regulations for 

restaurants with alcohol sales; 4. consistent with comprehensive plan and other plans: yes, see above 

analysis; 5. Traffic ingress/egress: the proposed use is not expected to create undue traffic congestion in 

the public streets, it is anticipated customers will utilize the existing driveway located on the alley to enter 

and exit the parking lot; 6. landscaping and screening: not applicable to this use. 7. neighborhood 

compatibility with predominant land uses in this area: the proposed use is located near other commercial 

uses in this area of City; 8. impact on services: the City has existing utilities, services and equipment in 

place to serve this proposed use).  These standards were found in the affirmative, as long as all 

stipulations are satisfied.  

 

Technical Review Group (TRG) Report:  This item appeared on the March 22, 2022 TRG agenda.  No 

negative comments were received from participating departments. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION________________________________________________________  _ 

Staff recommends, based on the above, that Special Use Permit #5-22 for a restaurant with alcohol sales 

and service located at 1103 West College Avenue (Tax Id #31-3-1064-00), as shown on the attached maps 

and per attached plan of operation, along with the attached resolution, BE APPROVED to run with the 

land, subject to the following conditions: 

 



Special Use Permit #5-22 

April 13, 2022 

Page 4 

 

1. The applicant shall receive approval of a Liquor License from the City Clerk prior to serving 

alcohol on the premises. 

Substantial Evidence:  This condition provides notice to the applicant that a Liquor License is 

also needed prior to serving alcohol. 

 

2. The use shall conform to the standards established in Chapter 9, Article III, Alcoholic Beverages, 

of the Appleton Municipal Code. 

Substantial Evidence:  This condition is one of the special regulations included in Section 23-

66(h)(6) of the Zoning Ordinance for this particular use. 

 

3. The site shall be kept free of litter and debris. 

Substantial Evidence:  This condition is one of the special regulations included in Section 23-

66(h)(6) of the Zoning Ordinance for this particular use. 

 

4. All Zoning, Building, Fire, Engineering, Utility and other Municipal Codes, and all applicable 

State and Federal laws shall be complied with. 

Substantial Evidence:  This condition is one of the special regulations included in Section 23-

66(h)(6) of the Zoning Ordinance for this particular use. 

 

5. Any expansions of the special use, changes to the development plan(s), plan of operation or any 

conditions of approval may require a major or minor amendment request to this Special Use 

Permit pursuant to Section 23-66(g) of the Zoning Ordinance.  Contact the Community and 

Economic Development Department to discuss any proposed changes. 

Substantial Evidence:  Standardized condition that establishes parameters for the current 

application and identifies the process for review of any future changes to the special use. 

 

 



1 | P a g e  

 

CITY OF APPLETON 

RESOLUTION FOR SPECIAL USE PERMIT #5-22  

RESTAURANT WITH ALCOHOL 

1103 WEST COLLEGE AVENUE  

 

 

WHEREAS, Russell Leary, Mill City Public House, has applied for a Special Use Permit for a restaurant with 

alcohol sales and service located at 1103 West College Avenue, also identified as Parcel Number 31-3-1064-00; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the location for the proposed restaurant with alcohol sales and service is located in the C-2 

General Commercial District, and the proposed use may be permitted by Special Use Permit within this zoning 

district pursuant to Chapter 23 of the Municipal Code; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Appleton Plan Commission held a public hearing on April 13, 2022 on Special Use 

Permit #5-22, at which all those wishing to be heard were allowed to speak or present written comments and 

other materials at the public hearing; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Appleton Plan Commission has reviewed and considered the Community and 

Economic Development Department’s staff report and recommendation, as well as other spoken and written 

evidence and testimony presented at the public hearing; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Appleton Plan Commission reviewed the standards for granting a Special Use Permit 

under Sections 23-66(e)(1-8) of the Municipal Code; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Appleton Plan Commission reviewed the standards for imposing conditions on the 

Special Use Permit under Section 23-66(c)(5) of the Municipal Code, and forwarded Special Use Permit #5-22 

to the City of Appleton Common Council with a   favorable conditional      or       not favorable      (CIRCLE 

ONE) recommendation; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Appleton Common Council has reviewed the report and recommendation of the City 

of Appleton Plan Commission at their meeting on April 20, 2022. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED AND ORDERED by the Common Council, 

based on Community and Economic Development Department’s staff report and recommendation, as well as 

other spoken and written evidence and testimony presented at the public hearing and Common Council meeting, 

and having considered the recommendation of the City Plan Commission, that the Common Council: 

 

1. Determines all standards listed under Sections 23-66(e)(1-8) of the Municipal Code are found in the 

affirmative     YES     or     NO      (CIRCLE ONE) 

 

2. If NO, the City of Appleton Common Council hereby denies Special Use Permit #5-22 for a restaurant with 

alcohol sales and service located at 1103 West College Avenue, also identified as Parcel Number 31-3-

1064-00, based upon the following standards and determinations:  (List reason(s) why the Special Use 

Permit was denied) 

 



2 | P a g e  

 

3. If YES, the City of Appleton Common Council hereby approves Special Use Permit #5-22 for a restaurant 

with alcohol sales and service at 1103 West College Avenue, also identified as Parcel Number 31-3-1064-

00, subject to the following conditions as they are related to the purpose of the City of Appleton Municipal 

Code and based on substantial evidence: 

 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR SPECIAL USE PERMIT #5-22: 

 

A. The applicant shall receive approval of a Liquor License from the City Clerk prior to serving alcohol on 

the premises. 

 

B. The use shall conform to the standards established in Chapter 9, Article III, Alcoholic Beverages, of the 

Appleton Municipal Code. 

 

C. The site shall be kept free of litter and debris. 

 

D. All Zoning, Building, Fire, Engineering, Utility and other Municipal Codes, and all applicable State and 

Federal laws shall be complied with. 

 

E. Any expansions of the special use, changes to the development plan(s), plan of operation or any 

conditions of approval may require a major or minor amendment request to this Special Use Permit 

pursuant to Section 23-66(g) of the Zoning Ordinance.  Contact the Community and Economic 

Development Department to discuss any proposed changes. 

 

4. The City Clerk’s Office is hereby directed to give a copy of this resolution to the owner/applicant, 

Community and Economic Development Department, Inspections Division, and any other interested party. 

 

 

Adopted this ______ day of ____________________________, 2022. 

 

 

 

        _____________________________________ 

        Jacob A. Woodford, Mayor  

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Kami Lynch, City Clerk 











3-1121-1

3-1128-1

5-1670

3-1
10

6
3-1

11
4

3-1
07

9

3-1
08

0

5-1728
3-1

10
9

3-1
10

8

3-1
11

0

3-1
11

5

3-1
11

6

3-1
11

7

3-1
11

8

3-1
11

9

3-1
06

4
3-1

07
2

3-1
07

1

3-1
11

2

3-1
11

1

3-1
07

0

3-1
06

9

3-1
06

8

3-1
06

7

3-1
06

6
3-1

05
9

3-1
06

0

3-1
06

1

3-1
06

2

3-1
06

3

3-1
09

4

3-1
09

3
3-1

10
2

3-1
08

7

3-1
08

6

5-1729-1
5-1669

5-1677

5-1674

5-1673

5-1
683

5-1
675

5-1676

3-1137

3-1056

3-10573-1050

3-1
12

3

3-1
12

2

3-1
12

1
3-1

13
0

3-1
13

1

3-1
13

2

3-1
12

7
3-1

12
6

3-1
12

5
3-1

12
4

3-1
12

8

3-1
13

3 3-1
13

4

3-1
13

5

3-1
13

6

3-1
05

4

3-1
05

3

3-1
05

2

3-1
04

3

3-1
04

4

3-1
04

5

3-1
04

6-1

3-1
04

7
3-1

04
8

3-1
04

9

3-1
05

5
3-1

04
6

3-1121-2

3-1
081

3-1
058

3-1
065

3-1103

3-1104 3-1129

3-1
05

1

3-1
12

0

3-1105
3-1113

3-1
10

7
5-1671-1

3-1
12

0-1

1007.51121.5

140.5

1023 1017 1011

1117

1013 1007 1003

1000

1010

1033

12
7

12
012
0

11
2

21
0

21
8

21
2

22
0

1112.5 1102.5

21
9

1207-09 1203 1135 1127 1121 1115 1109 1103
1135.5

110211081114112411281134 1118
1128.5 1118.5 1032.5 1026.5

1032

1003.5

12
7.5

10031007101310171023

136.5136
130

140

200

13
9

13
5

20
1

21
7

21
3

1129.5 1125.5

1008

11
9

1012101810221026

1023.5
1027-291031

1035.5
1035

12021208

12031209 1119112511291135 110311091115

21
9

20
9

ALLEY

W COLLEGE AV

W LAWRENCE ST

S S
UM

MI
T S

T

S S
PR

UC
E S

T

N BADGER AV

W WASHINGTON ST

MARSTON ALLEY

C-2

P-I

R-2

R-2

R-1B

R-2

R-1C

R-2

R-2

R-1B

R-1C

R-1C

R-1B

R-1C

R-1B

R-1B
R-1C

R-2

R-1B

R-2

R-2

R-1B
R-2

R-1B

R-1B
R-1B

R-1B

R-2

R-1C

W COLLEGE AV

W PACKARD ST

W LAWRENCE ST

W SPENCER ST

W EIGHTH ST

N BADGER AV

W LORAIN ST

S S
TA

TE
 S

T

S S
TO

RY
 ST

S M
AS

ON
 ST

N 
ST

AT
E S

T

N 
ST

OR
Y S

T

N 
MA

SO
N 

ST

S D
OU

GL
AS

 ST

S BADGER AV

W FOURTH ST S M
EM

OR
IA

L D
R

S L
OC

US
T S

T

N 
BE

NN
ET

T S
T

N 
DO

UG
LA

S 
ST

S O
UT

AG
AM

IE 
ST

S P
IE

RC
E A

V

N 
RI

CH
MO

ND
 ST

N 
LO

CU
ST

 ST

LORAIN CT

W HARRIS ST

S V
IC

TO
RI

A S
T ALLEY

N 
FA

IR
 ST

ALLEY

Special Use Permit
Restaurant with Alcohol sales and service

1103 West College Avenue
Zoning Map

Subject
Area

City Plan Commission
4-13-2022

Subject Area

± 0 100 20050 Feet



3-1
06

4

3-1
06

3

12
0

1109 1103

ALLEY

S S
UM

MI
T S

T

W COLLEGE AV Special Use Permit
Restaurant with Alcohol sales and service

1103 West College Avenue
Aerial Map

City Plan Commission
4-13-2022

Subject Area

± 0 20 4010 Feet



H
ood

Food Prep Tables

Glass Storage 
w/drain

Ice Bin
w/drain

2 Basin Sink
supply/drain

Hand Wash
supply/drain

dishwasher

4 compartment sink

Floor Drain

Mop Sink

Fl
oo

r D
ra

in
 (t

ra
ug

h)

W
alk in cooler and freezer

81

Combi Oven

6 Burner Range

Deep Fryer

Flat Top Griddle

Deep Fryer

Deep Fryer

41

36

16

16

16

60

Hand
Sink

Food Prep 
Sink

Hand
Sink

40

17

Reach In Freezer

Office

Rinse

Dump

Hand Wash

Garbage

Ice

Liquer

Drain Board
w/storage 

Glass
Washer

FR2

Dump

Rinse

Ice

Liquer

Hand Wash

Garbage

Cabinet

Beer
Cooler

Beer Lines

Beer 
Cooler

Cabinet

Server station
reg base cabinet

Open Shelves

cooler

cabinet

Sink
Hand

24

36

36

12

re
g 

ba
se

 c
ab

in
et

S
er

ve
r s

ta
tio

n

O
pe

n 
S

he
lv

es

107

521
8

1427
8

224
2271

2

2171
4

Water station

552

2251
2

951
2

216

2261
4

1151
2

75

7261
8

197

2661
2

2541
2

1001
2


	0000_Agenda
	0001_1_City Plan Minutes 3-23-22
	0002_1_ClassIIPublicHearingNoticeNewspaper_1103WCollegeAve_SUP5-22
	0002_2_PublicHearingNoticeNeighborhood_1103WCollegeAve_SUP5-22
	0003_1_StaffReport_1103WCollegeAve_SUP_For04-13-22

